**Building:** Former Smalley & Harkness

Boot Factory

Address: 16 Islington Street,

Collingwood

Significance:

В

Melway Map Ref:

2G G1

**Building Type:** 

Factory

Construction Date: 1898 onwards

Architect:

Unknown

Builder:

Unknown



Intactness:		Condition:	
G[x] F[ ] P[ ]		G[ ] F[x] P[ ]	
Existing Heritage Listings:		Recommended Heritage Listings:	
Victorian Heritage Register	[ ]	Victorian Heritage Register	[ ]
Register of the National Estate	[ ]	Register of the National Estate	[x]
National Trust	[ ]	Heritage Overlay Controls	[x]

### History

William Smalley, boot manufacturer, commenced business as Smalley Pitman and Yates at 76 Wellington Street in 1878. By 1879 he was trading as Smalley & Yates in Smith Street, and from 1880 to 1882 as Smalley & Mair, Smith Street. By 1884 the long standing Smalley & Harkness partnership had been formed, trading at 7-9 Wellington Street. In 1898 they moved to new premises at 11 Hoddle Street.<sup>3</sup>

The new brick premises faced Hoddle Street and extended partway to Islington Street.<sup>4</sup> By 1903 this building had been extended to the Islington Street frontage. Since that time it has been enlarged along Islington Street and part demolished since the widening of Hoddle Street in the mid-1970s.

As early as 1891, the firm was ordering the first welt machines and outsole stitchers from the Goodyear Shoe Machinery Co. of Boston, enabling it to undertake in 90 seconds the same work which had previously taken two and half hours.<sup>5</sup> By 1899, *The Australian Leather Journal* was claiming that 'no firm in Victoria is better known for the excellence of its work',<sup>6</sup> and listed the innovative machinery in the machine, stuffing and finishing rooms.

In 1928, the firm's name changed to Harkness Shoes Pty Ltd,<sup>7</sup> and it remained at 11-19 Hoddle Street until 1967.<sup>8</sup> In 1969 the premises were taken over by York Press Ltd, printers.

Andrew Ward. Collingwood Conservation Study. 1995.

## Description

The former Smalley & Harkness Boot Factory, 16 Islington Street, Collingwood, is a large, two-storey brick factory building. Its walls are of face red brick with a bluestone plinth, punctuated by rows of rectangular windows with shallow segmental-arched brick heads. Windows are timber-framed double-hung sashes with bluestone sills. The west elevation, on Islington Street, comprises five gabled bays; a faded painted sign bearing the words SMALLEY & HARKNESS is visible on the upper wall of the northernmost bay, The corrugated iron roofs are penetrated by tall, red brick corbelled chimneys.

#### **Comparative Examples**

Former Boot Factory, 15-17 Bedford Street, Collingwood Former Trescowthick's Boot Factory, 324-326 Hoddle Street, Abbotsford Former William Peatt Boot Factory, 55 Langridge Street, Collingwood Former United Tannery & Boot Factory, 112A Rokeby Street, Collingwood

#### Significance

The former Smalley & Harkness Boot Factory, 16 Islington Street, Collingwood is of local historical and architectural significance. The building formerly housed one of Collingwood's largest and most innovative boot manufacturing businesses, which was established in the suburb in 1878. Architecturally, the building is a substantially intact example of turn-of-the-century factory construction, and as such makes a positive contribution to the wholly industrial streetscape.

# Original Source

Andrew Ward. Collingwood Conservation Study. 1995.

<sup>1</sup> Sands & McDougall Directory, 1878.

<sup>2</sup> Sands & McDougall Directory.

<sup>3</sup> Sands & McDougall Directory.

<sup>4</sup> The Australian Leather Journal and Boot and Shoe Recorder, 15 September 1899

- 5 Canon, p.196.
- The Australian Leather Journal, 15 September 1899. Sands & McDougall Directory, 1927. Sands & McDougall Directory 1968, 'not available'.
- 6 7 8